
MINUTES 
TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 15, 2019 

 
Deputy Mayor Kelly called the Regular Meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham to order at 7:32 P.M. 
 
Adequate Notice of this meeting of the Township Committee was given as required by the Open Public 
Meetings Act as follows: Notice was given to both The Chatham Courier and the Morris County Daily 
Record on January 4, 2019; notice was posted on the bulletin board in the main hallway of the Municipal 
Building on January 4, 2019; and notice was filed with the Township Clerk on January 4, 2019. 
  
Deputy Mayor Kelly led the Flag Salute.   
 
Roll Call 
 
Answering present to the roll call were Committeewoman Ness, Committeewoman Swartz, 
Deputy Mayor Kelly and Mayor Selen.   Mayor Selen participated via conference call.  
Committeeman Ritter arrived late.   
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
Committeewoman Ness moved to approve the Agenda as written.   Deputy Mayor Kelly 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.   
 
Oath of Office – Sergeant Anthony LoPorto   
  
Deputy Mayor Kelly read a brief biography of Sergeant Anthony LoPorto’s law enforcement 
career, also noting his military service.   
 
The oath of office for Sergeant LoPorto was administered by Deputy Mayor Kelly.   
 
Reports  
 
Committeewoman Swartz reported that the Senior Center will be closed for vacation from 
August 19th until September 4th.  She also provided an update on the removal of ash trees due to 
the emerald ash borer.   
 
Committeewoman Ness reported that the Sustainability Fair will be on September 14th from 8:00 
AM to 1:00 PM.  She noted that the Environmental Commission has been working with 
ShopRite to provide reusable vegetable bags.  An ordinance regarding use of plastic bags will be 
on a September meeting agenda.  Committeewoman Ness also reported that the Rolling Knolls 
Advisory Group met, and information on remedial action is not expected until sometime in 2020.  
She further reported that the Communications Committee is in the process of reviewing the 
protocols manual, and negotiations are ongoing with Comcast regarding the franchise agreement 
renewal.  Committeewoman Ness also reported on the National Night Out event that was held at 
Colony Pool on August 6th.  She also provided updated membership numbers for Colony Pool, 
and said that 393 total members, up from 363 in 2018, which includes 117 new members.   
 
Mayor Selen congratulated Sgt. LoPorto on his promotion.   
 
Engineer Ruschke reported that he is working with the Morris County Co-op to schedule paving.  
Due to demand, the work will likely be in late August or early September.  Committeewoman 
Swartz asked about a new gas main on Lenape Trail.  Engineer Ruschke said that PSE&G had an 
outstanding road opening permit, which has been revoked.   
 
2019 Budget Update  
 
Administrator Hoffmann provided an update on the 2019 Budget.  He said that the Finance 
Committee, Administrator and CFO met on July 17th to review the finances as of June 30th.  
Administrator Hoffmann said that the Township is on target with anticipated expenses, and 



 2 

sufficient funds are available for fulfilling contracts.  Some budget transfers may be needed in 
November or December due to increased recycling costs and some unanticipated affordable 
housing costs due to court mandates.  The ratable base increases each year, and will likely 
increase at a smaller percentage in 2019 than in recent years.  Administrator Hoffmann said that 
the ratable base will likely increase more in 2020 than in 2019.  He also said that he will be 
reporting to the Township Committee with a plan for appropriate use of surplus.  From the 2017 
Budget the Township will be able lapse $532,571 into surplus.  Administrator Hoffmann also 
said that an analysis of long-term debt was performed, and he will present information during the 
2020 budget process on how debt can be paid off at a faster rate.   
 
Committeewoman Ness asked if the MUA has been contacted to see what they are doing to 
mitigate the recycling cost increase.  Administrator Hoffmann said that the MUA will be having 
a meeting with several municipal administrators, and the County plans to step up their 
enforcement of proper recycling.  Committeeman Ritter asked if recycling is worthwhile.  
Administrator Hoffmann said that there is a market for some recyclable materials, and there is 
also the issue of contamination resulting from people attempting to recycle materials that cannot 
be recycled.  He also said that it still costs more to dispose of solid waste than it does to dispose 
of recycling.  Committeewoman Swartz commented on the Tag It & Leave It campaign that the 
County is enacting, and said that it will encourage residents to dispose of recycling with solid 
waste which may result in private haulers getting fined.   
 
Goals & Objectives Follow-Up  
 
Administrator Hoffmann said that an updated memorandum of goals and objectives was 
distributed to the Township Committee, and the current draft includes input from the Township 
Committee.  He asked the Township Committee to review the prioritization of the goals.   
 
Committeeman Ritter asked about the contract for the Colony Pool concession stand.  
Administrator Hoffmann said that there is a renewal option for an additional year, and there has 
been a positive response to the current vendor.   
 
Committeewoman Ness asked if the goals and objectives will be discussed publicly.  
Administrator Hoffmann said that the document will be made public after the Township 
Committee has had final input.   Committeewoman Swartz noted that priorities are a subject to 
change at any time.   
 
Committeewoman Ness said that she reviewed the goals & objectives for surrounding towns and 
found some items that she would like to add to the Township’s list.  Deputy Mayor Kelly 
suggested that the substantive discussion on the list be held at the September 12th meeting.   
 
Colony Pool Update   
 
Administrator Hoffmann said that a complete report will be presented at the October 10th 
meeting, which will show total revenues and expenses.  Administrator Hoffmann also said that 
there are 30 more registrants in 2019 than there were in 2018.  He also said the report will 
include data beyond what is reported in Community Pas.  Committeeman Ritter asked if the 
report would include data from years prior to 2018.  Administrator Hoffmann said that it will 
include prior data.  Committeeman Ritter noted that in 2018 there was a drop in enrollment, but 
there had been an increase in enrollment and revenue in the years from 2014 to 2017.  
Committeewoman Ness asked for Committeeman Ritter to share the report showing that data.   
 
Hearing of Citizens  
  
Deputy Mayor Kelly opened the Hearing of Citizens.   
 

1. Stephen & Jeanette Reed, 10 Scenery Hill Drive, addressed a drainage problem on their 
property which they said was caused by construction on the property next door.  Engineer 
Ruschke said that he inspected the property to observe the condition, however he was 
unable to observe the prior condition.  He noted that the Reed’s property is lower than the 
neighboring property.  Engineer Ruschke also said he has to rely on the signd and sealed 
plans and documentation submitted by the engineer and surveyor for the neighboring 
property.  Mrs. Reed presented pictures to show the drainage issues.  She also noted that 



 3 

there was a retaining wall removed on the neighboring property, which has affected the 
grading.  Deputy Mayor Kelly asked Attorney Cruz to comment on the Township 
Committee’s ability to address this matter.  Attorney Cruz said that Engineer Ruschke has 
to rely on the certifications submitted by the developer of the neighboring property.  He 
also said that it is currently a matter between two property owners, and they will need to 
work with each other to negotiate a solution.  Committeeman Ritter asked if the 
Township can put pressure on the neighbor to fix the situation.  Engineer Ruschke 
reiterated that he is unable to issue a summons without having observed the prior 
condition.  Mr. Reed said that this matter has previously been to mediation, and only a 
portion was settled.   
 

2. Stacey Ewald, 54 Nicholson Drive, thanked the Township’s administration for 
developing goal and objectives, and for developing financial projections.  Mrs. Ewald 
asked about electrical infrastructure updates, citing that power outages have been 
happening more often.  Committeewoman Swartz said that a meeting has been scheduled 
for September with JCP&L to discuss the upgrades that they have planned, and she noted 
that the demand on the grid is greater than it used to be.   
 

3. Dan Miller, 465 Green Village Road, asked about use of surplus for upgrades at the 
sewer plant.  Administrator Hoffmann said that upgrades are planned, but not through use 
of surplus funds.  Mr. Miller noted that surplus would include tax revenue from property 
owners who do not have access to the Township’s sewer system.  Administrator 
Hoffmann noted that there are separate sewer utility fees collected form users of that 
system, and residents who have septic systems do not pay those fees.  Mr. Miller noted 
that there is a requirement that those who have septic systems obtain a license every three 
years for which they have to pay a $15 processing fee.  He asked if the staff who collect 
sewer utility fees receive a portion of their salary from processing fees related to the 
sewer system.  Administrator Hoffmann said that most of the fees go toward the 
operation of the plant.  Mr. Miller also addressed property maintenance and setbacks, 
particularly on open space properties.  Committeeman Ritter suggested that the Open 
Space Committee be asked to monitor the maintenance of the open space properties.   
 

4. Lee Giblin, 27 Rolling Hill Drive, said that she was told there are potential locations for 
the relocation of the Skate Park, and she asked for an update.  Mrs. Giblin also cited the 
value of the Skate Park to many residents.  Deputy Mayor Kelly said that he is not sure 
how many of the potential sites are still viable.  He also said that the Township has 
worked with the School District and surrounding towns to help find a site.  Administrator 
Hoffmann said that there are other decisions that have to be made before the relocation of 
the Skate Park can be addressed.  He said that there are some parcels in the Township that 
may be able to be considered.  Administrator Hoffmann also said there are some 
neighboring towns that are considering building skate parks.  The Skate Park is currently 
open for use while the various issues are being resolved.  Committeewoman Ness noted 
that the material used to build the Skate Park is no longer in use, and it is unknown if the 
Skate Park as it currently exists could be moved.  Committeewoman Swartz said it was 
previously discussed if a concrete skate park would be a better option.  Mrs. Giblin said 
she is glad that the Township is still seeking a new location for the Skate Park.  
Committeewoman Ness suggested that the Passaic River Park could be a potential 
location.  She also addressed funding options.   
 

5. Jennifer McNally, 19 Ferndale Road, asked if the Township would seek community 
partners to help fund the relocation of the Skate Park.  She also asked if the Township has 
a list of the Open Space Properties.  Deputy Mayor Kelly said that the Open Space 
Element of the Master Plan is posted on the Township website.  He noted that it is in the 
process of being updated, and it includes a list of open space properties.  Mrs. McNally 
asked where budget surpluses are applied in the budget.  Administrator Hoffmann said 
that when surplus is used, it is not earmarked for particular items or initiatives.  Mrs. 
McNally asked if use of surplus in the past has triggered the need for borrowing of 
money.  Administrator Hoffmann said that it is normal for municipalities to incur debt for 
capital investments, and the Township is working to ensure that debt is being managed in 
an advantageous way so as to minimize future interest payments.    

 
Seeing no further comment, Deputy Mayor Kelly closed the Hearing of Citizens.   



 4 

  
Consent Agenda 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-163 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM, IN 

THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, APPROVING SUBMITTAL OF A 
GRANT APPLICATION AND EXECUTION OF A GRANT CONTRACT WITH THE MORRIS 
COUNTY PRESERVATION TRUST FUND FOR THE HILLTOP WALKING TRAIL PROJECT 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee of the Township of Chatham 

formally approves the grant application for the above stated project. The project, known as the “Hilltop 
Walking Trail” is for the construction of a 0.85 mile walking trail on Block 67, Lot 12 in the Township of 
Chatham. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Committee of the Township of Chatham is in support 
of the project and will provide full funding in advance, given the grant will be reimbursed upon 
completion of the project 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to submit a 
grant application identified as Hilltop Walking Trail Project to the Morris County Preservation Trust 
Fund on behalf of the Township of Chatham. 

BE IR FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the 
grant agreement on behalf of the Township of Chatham and that their signature constitutes the acceptance 
of the terms and conditions of the grant agreement and approves the execution of the grant agreement. 

 
RESOLUTION 2019-164 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BILLS, PAYROLLS, SCHOOL TAXES AND COUNTY TAXES 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED that bills in the total amount of $1,286,943.96 and the prior month’s payroll 
of $517,622.11 Current Fund, $43,369.27 Sewer No. 1, $7,847.51 Sewer No. 2, and  
$18,535.25 Police Private Employment be paid. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that taxes due to the School District of the Chathams, for the 
month of August 2019, in the amount of $3,200,207.00 be paid. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that taxes due to the County of Morris, for the       Third 
Quarter of 2019, in the amount of $2,327,035.37 be paid. 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-165 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM, 

ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF REPORTS  
  
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of Chatham that the 
following monthly reports of departments be acknowledged as received: 
    

CFO – July  
Tax Collector – July  
Police Department – July   

 
RESOLUTION 2019-166 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM 
APPROVING MINUTES OF MEETINGS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the Township of Chatham acknowledges 
receipt of and approves the minutes of the Township Committee meeting held   on July 18, 2019.   
 

RESOLUTION 2019-167 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP  

OF CHATHAM APPROVING EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
  
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the Township of Chatham acknowledges 
receipt of and approves Executive Session minutes of the Township Committee meeting held on July 18, 
2019.   
 

RESOLUTION 2019-168 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM, IN 

THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY,  
REFUNDING OVERPAYMENT OF TAXES 

 
 WHEREAS, an overpayment of property taxes has been made for the following properties; and  
 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector has recommended the refund of such overpayment, 



 5 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham that the following refunds be made: 
 
BLOCK LOT NAME   &   ADDRESS  AMOUNT 

 
83 

 
40 

 
Golding, Christopher G/Pamela L 
41 Linden Lane 
Chatham, NJ 07928 

 
Property Location:  41 Linden Lane 
 

 
$5,899.51 
1st Quarter 2019 

 
Overpayment of Taxes 
 

 
108 

 

 
5 
 

 
Wang, Yuxi & Mao, Xiaoye 
209 Southern Blvd.  
Chatham, NJ  07928 
 
Property Location: 209 Southern Blvd.  
 

 
$2,428.73  
1st Quarter 2019 

 
Overpayment of Taxes 

 
123 

 
11 

 
Fitt, David & Beth 
5 Overlook Road  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$4,417.53 
3rd Quarter 2019  
 
Overpayment of Taxes  
 

 
RESOLUTION 2019-169 

TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM, IN THE COUNTY OF 
MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, RELEASING DEVELOPER ESCROW ACCOUNT 

AND/OR PERFORMANCE BOND BALANCES 
 

WHEREAS, developers are required to deposit monies with the Township for the purposes of 
offsetting Township professional costs to review plans or to inspect approved development and for the 
purpose of ensuring the satisfactory completion of public or private improvements; and 

WHEREAS, these deposited monies, following all necessary withdrawals to cover Township 
expenses or costs, may be released upon satisfactory completion of work, receipt of review board 
decisions, or completion of guaranteed work, upon passage of a Township resolution authorizing such 
release.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham that the following guarantee amount or account balances, with interest adjustments as prescribed 
by state and local laws, may be released to the depositor of record:   

 
NAME Project A/C NUMBER AMOUNT 

 
Majed Rafeh 
97 Highland Avenue  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
 

ROI 2017-65 

 
 

7764128681 

 
 

$555.55 

 
RESOLUTION 2019-170 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM TO 

AWARD CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE OF POLICE VEHICLE 
 

WHEREAS, a 2010 Ford Crown Victoria Police vehicle with over 118,0000 miles of service 
requires significant repairs and  

WHEREAS, it has been determined the Township Committee of the Township of Chatham 
wishes to purchase one (1) Police vehicle and, 

WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has recommended the purchase of a 2020 Ford Interceptor 
Utility K8A AWD SUV with Police Package, including spot light, and 

WHEREAS, the above referenced vehicle is available through the Educational Services 
Commission of New Jersey cooperative purchasing system, Contract number ESC Co-op 
#65MCESCCPS – ESCNJ 17/18-21, and 

WHEREAS, "Certification of Availability of Funds" is annexed hereto: 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee on this day, August 

15, 2019 that: 
 

1. Contract for: Purchase of Police vehicle be and is hereby awarded to: 



 6 

 
Beyer Ford  
170 Ridgedale Avenue  
Morristown, New Jersey 07936 

  
For a sum not to exceed $36,000 including fit out.   

 
2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
RESOLUTION 2019-171 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SURPLUS MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT 
  
 WHEREAS, the Township of Chatham is the owner of certain surplus property which is no 
longer needed for public use; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee are desirous of selling said surplus property in an “as is” 
condition without express or implied warranties. 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham, Morris County, State of New Jersey, as follows:  
 

(1) The sale of the surplus property shall be conducted through GovDeals pursuant to State 
Contract A-83453/T2581 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the State 
Contract.  The terms and conditions of the agreement entered into with GovDeals is 
available online at govdeals.com. 
 

(2) The sale will be conducted online and the address of the auction site is govdeals.com. 
 

(3) The sale is being conducted pursuant to Local Finance Notice 2008-9. 
 
(4) A list of the surplus property to be sold is as follows:   

                        
YEAR ITEM VIN or  MODEL No 

   
2003 Ford F-550 4x4 Mason Dump 1FDAF576P63ED34782 

 17 Storage Lockers 11.5’ Wide, 19.5’ Deep, 6’ Tall  
 

(5) The surplus property as identified  shall be sold in an “as-is” condition without express or 
implied warranties with the successful bidder required to execute a Hold Harmless and 
Indemnification Agreement concerning use of said surplus property. 
 

(6) The Township of Chatham reserves the right to accept or reject any bid submitted. 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-172 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM, IN 

THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY,  
REFUNDING COLONY YOGA & WATER EXERCISE FEES 

 
 WHEREAS, a registration fee was paid for a Colony Pool Membership; and 
 WHEREAS, a refund of the registration fee has been requested for Yoga and Water Exercises; 
 WHEREAS, the Yoga and Water Exercises classes were cancelled due to a lack of participation.    
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham that the following refund be made: 
 

NAME   &   ADDRESS   AMOUNT 
 
Kathy Abbott  
40 Wynwood Road  
Chatham, NJ 07928  
 

 
$60.00 

Yoga at Colony  

 
Melissa Cavallone  
400 Fairmount Ave 
Chatham, NJ 07928 
 

 
$40.00 

Yoga at Colony 
 

 
Katey DePinto  

 
$20.00  



 7 

40 Clark Street  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

Yoga at Colony 

 
Dorothy Lee  
10 Pembrooke Road  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$80.00  

Yoga at Colony 

 
Lucy Malatesta  
148 Washington Ave  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$60.00 

Yoga at Colony 
 

 
Amy Mason  
48 Hilltop Terrace  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$60.00 

Yoga at Colony 

 
Asher Robson  
49 Pine Street  
Chatham, NJ  07928 
 

 
$40.00  

Yoga at Colony 
 

 
Stephanie Sciarello  
16 Valley View Road  
Chatham, NJ  07928 
 

 
$60.00 

Yoga at Colony 

 
Tracy Ness  
14 Joanna Way  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$40.00  

Water Exercise  
 

 
K. Winter  
119 Riveredge Drive  
Chatham, NJ  07928  
 

 
$40.00  

Water Exercise  

 
RESOLUTION 2019-173 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM TO 
AWARD CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE OF POLICE DEPARTMENT LIVESCAN FINGER 

PRINT MACHINE 
  

WHEREAS, the Police Department’s current finger print machine no longer has vendors that are 
able to service it should the need arise, and  

WHEREAS, parts and software for the machine are becoming more difficult to obtain and, 
WHEREAS, the Morris County Prosecutor’s Office issued a Directive to all Law Enforcement 

Agencies operating in Morris County that when the time comes to replace their current equipment, an up-
to-date LiveScan system is to be purchased so that interconnectivity with other agencies can be assured, 
and 

WHEREAS, the cost of a new LiveScan system including software is $23,953 and is available as 
directed by the Prosecutor’s Office through Indemia Identity & Security USA 5515 East La Palma 
Avenue, Suite 100, Anaheim, California, 92007, and 

WHEREAS, "Certification of Availability of Funds" is annexed hereto: 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee on this day, August 

15, 2019 that: 
 

3. Contract for: Purchase of a Finger Print (LiveScan) Machine be and is hereby awarded to: 
 

Indemia Identity & Security USA  
5515 East La Palma Avenue 
Suite 100  
Anaheim, California 92007 

  
For a sum not to exceed $24,000.   

 



 8 

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
Committeewoman Swartz asked about the trail grant application, and the amount of money for 
which the Township is applying.  Engineer Ruschke said that the project is the improvement of 
trails on the Hillside Avenue open space property, and the amount requested is $120,000 for the 
project.  He also said that the Township will be expected to contribute 20% of the projects costs.  
Committeeman Ritter asked if the trails are already existing.  Engineer Ruschke said that the 
project would have the trails expanded.   
 
Committeeman Ritter asked about the refund of registration fees for programs at Colony Pool 
that were cancelled.  Administrator Hoffmann said that a minimum number of registrants were 
needed to run the programs, and those numbers were not met.  Committeewoman Ness said that 
the facility was also not available for yoga.  Administrator Hoffmann said that the anticipated 
yoga revenues did not cover the full cost of the program, and those who signed up are entitled to 
a refund.   
 
Committeewoman Swartz moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Committeewoman Ness 
seconded the motion.   
  
Roll call: Committeewoman Ness, Aye; Committeewoman Swartz, Aye; Committeeman Ritter, 
Aye; Deputy Mayor Kelly, Aye; Mayor Selen, Aye. 
 
Discussion 
 
Commuter Shuttle Options  
 
Committeeman Ritter reported that he is working to confirm with Christ Church that they are 
interested in hosting a commuter shuttle parking area.  Insurance liabilities are also being 
investigated.  Committeeman Ritter said that TransOptions estimates that 36 spots can be 
available at the Christ Church locations, with an additional 36 spots at the Shunpike Field 
overflow lot.  He also said that TransOptions has a business relationship with State Shuttle, and 
the anticipated cost for shuttle service is $5 each way.  Committeeman Ritter said that other 
options were also investigated.  MyLimo would be less expensive to riders, but the Township 
would need to handle collecting the money and issuing passes.  Committeeman Ritter said that 
over 800 people indicated through a survey that they are interested in participating in the shuttle 
service.   
 
Committeewoman Swartz asked about inclement weather and plowing.  Committeeman Ritter 
said that the Church does have someone who plows their lot, and it will be investigated what it 
would take to have that plowing be prioritized.  Shunpike plowing would be done by the 
Township.   
 
Mayor Selen asked if the Township would be assuming any risk.  Committeeman Ritter said that 
insurance would cover any risk.   
 
Committeewoman Ness asked what the program will cost the Township.  Committeeman Ritter 
said that there will be no cost to the Township, as the riders will pay the shuttle service directly.   
 
Mayor Selen asked if the Township could be sued if somebody was injured in connection with 
the shuttle service.  Committeeman Ritter said that his understanding is that the shuttle 
company’s insurance would protect the Township, and the Township’s insurance would cover 
any incidents in the Shunpike parking lot.   
 
Financial Plan Recommendations  
 
Administrator Hoffmann said that prior to the September 12th meeting he will be providing the 
Township Committee a document outlining a proposed financial policy and plan to clarify how 
surplus is to be used.  The goal would be to protect the AAA rating, as well as to invest in future 
needs while keeping the tax rate stable.  Administrator Hoffmann said that the Township will 
work to ensure that fund balance is in the range of 10% - 15% of total expenditures, and 15% 
would only be exceeded when the Township becomes aware of significant future expenses.  A 
cost-benefit analysis will be conducted to determine the best method to pay down long term debt 



 9 

while keeping the municipal tax rate as low as possible.  Administrator Hoffmann noted that it 
may make sense in 2020 to keep the open space tax rate at $0.02 per $100 assessed value to help 
pay down open space debt sooner to save money in future years.  A 40-year projection will be 
provided to see how interest payments can be reduced over time.  Committeewoman Ness noted 
that the tax rate will need to be increased next year to pay down municipal debt.  Administrator 
Hoffmann said that long term costs will increase in 2022, and there may be options how to 
address it.  He also said that open space is only a portion of the Township’s long term debt.       
 
Organizational Chart  
 
Administrator Hoffmann said that a draft organizational chart has been distributed to the 
Township Committee.  He asked the Committee Members to review the draft and send him any 
comments.   
 
Pocket Park Easements  
 
Administrator Hoffmann said that the Township has a number of pocket parks and easements 
maintained by the Department of Public Works.  He said that the Township is investigating 
having an adopt-a-spot program through which private organizations could maintain the areas, 
thereby freeing up DPW to focus on other responsibilities.  Committeewoman Swartz noted that 
some areas would be in need of more maintenance than others.   
 
Hearing of Citizens/Petitions 
 
Deputy Mayor Kelly opened the Hearing of Citizens. 
 

1. Jennifer McNally, 19 Ferndale Road, asked if an RFP was issued to solicit vendors for 
the proposed shuttle to the Chatham Train Station.  Committeeman Ritter said that an 
RFP was not issued, and he worked with TransOptions and also reached out to MyLimo 
and Boxcar.  Mrs. McNally asked if there will be a financial benefit to whosever 
parking lot is used for the shuttle service.  Committeeman Ritter said there would not.  
Mrs. McNally said that $190,000 worth of business is being created for the vendor, and 
asked if the Township will make any money through the program.  She also said that 
this could be a revenue opportunity for the Township.  Committeeman Ritter said that 
the Township would need to be engaged in the running of the program in order to be 
able to collect any fees.  Mrs. McNally opined that an RFP should have been issued as 
part of this program.  Committeeman Ritter said that taxpayer dollars will not be spent 
on the program.   

 
Seeing no further comment, Deputy Mayor Kelly closed the Hearing of Citizens.   
 
Executive Session  
 

RESOLUTION 2019-P-13 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM IN 
THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING CONFERENCE OF 

THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE WITH THE PUBLIC EXCLUDED 
 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 of the Open Public Meetings Act permits the exclusion of the 
public from a meeting in certain circumstances; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Chatham is of the opinion that such 
circumstances presently exist. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of 
Chatham, County of Morris, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

 
1. The public shall be excluded from discussion of the specified subject matter. 

 
2. The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is as follows: 

 
a. Potential Litigation: Rolling Knolls Landfill  

 
b. Personnel Matter: Department of Public Works  
 



 10 

3. It is anticipated that the minutes on the subject matter of the Executive Session will be 
made public upon conclusion of the matter under discussion; and in any event, when 
appropriate pursuant to N.J.S.A. 10:4-7 and 4-13. 
 

4. The Committee will come back into Regular Session and may take further action. 
 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
Committeewoman Swartz moved to adopt Resolution 2019-P-13 to enter Executive Session at 
10:08 PM.  Committeewoman Ness seconded the motion.   
  
Roll call: Committeewoman Ness, Aye; Committeewoman Swartz, Aye; Committeeman Ritter, 
Aye; Deputy Mayor Kelly, Aye; Mayor Selen, Aye. 
 
The Township Committee returned to public session at 10:56 PM.    
  
Committeewoman Ness moved to adjourn at 10:56 PM.  Committeewoman Swartz seconded the 
motion, which carried unanimously.   
 
 
 
 
             
       Gregory J. LaConte 
       Municipal Clerk 


	Roll Call
	AMOUNT
	NAME

	BLOCK
	AMOUNT
	  AMOUNT

